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January 28, 2025 
 
Galveston County Commissioners Court 
 
Re: 1426 8th Street, San Leon, TX  
 Floodplain Permit Variance Request 
 
Honorable Judge and Commissioners: 
 
We have received a request from Drew & Dr. Sarah Garner for a variance from the floodplain 
regulations for a structure that has been constructed at 1426 8th Street, San Leon Texas. The 
request is to allow livable space 4 feet below the base flood elevation (BFE). 
 
Article 4, Section M of the Floodplain Management Regulations contain the variance procedures. 
 
A floodplain permit was issued on October 14, 2022 for storage building with a finished floor 
elevation below the BFE.  On December 8, 2022 the applicant requested that the structure 
change from storage to a “Tiny House”. The County informed applicant that the finished floor 
would need to be above BFE of 14 feet. County supplied a copy of the “A-Zone Permit” that 
applicant signed stating that no habitable area is allowed below the BFE of 14 feet. 
 
Attached is a request for a Variance Request dated November 2024 as well as correspondence 
from the applicant. 
 
A listing of the Floodplain Variance requirements with our observations follows: 
 
Article 4 Section M (6) - Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial 
improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded 
by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level, providing the relevant 
factors in Section C (2) of this article have been fully considered.  As the lot size increases beyond 
the one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance increase.  

 
Applicant is requesting a variance after the structure has been built. A permit was issued 
for a storage building and now applicant is requesting to use as livable space.  
There are structures in the vicinity and adjacent to applicant’s property that are above the 
BFE. 
Applicant has provided photographs of 3 structures below the BFE .  
Structure at 1422 8th Street was built pre-FIRM and is grandfathered. 
Photograph of structure at 1432 8th Street shows one structure below BFE and another 
above BFE. The structure below BFE is a non-compliant structure. 
Structure at 1432 9th Street is a non-compliant structure. 
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Article 4 Section C (2) - Review permit application to determine whether proposed building site, 
including the placement of manufactured homes, will be reasonably safe from flooding. 

 
Applicant has not demonstrated how the building site is reasonably safe from flooding. The 
site is approximately 100 feet from Galveston Bay and the structure is 4 feet below BFE. 

 
Article 4 Section M (10) Prerequisites for granting variances: 
(a) Variances shall only be issued upon determination that the variance is the minimum 

necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.  
(b) Variance shall only be issued upon, (I) showing a good and sufficient cause; (ii) a 

determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the 
applicant, and (iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in 
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, 
create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing 
local laws or ordinances 

 
Applicant has stated that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship 
but does not state what that hardship is. Applicant has stated that he has lost some sales of 
the property due to this issue. 

 
We do not see that the variance request meets the requirements of Article 4, Section M and 
recommend Commissioners Court deny the request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Nicole Stelly, Floodplain and Permit Manager 
 

 
Michael C. Shannon, PE, CFM 
County Engineer 
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